
 

July 22, 2021~6:00 PM Oroville Planning Commission Meeting Agenda Page 1 of 4 

OROVILLE PLANNING COMMISSION 
Council Chambers 

1735 Montgomery Street 
Oroville, CA. 95965 

 
 

July 22, 2021 
REGULAR MEETING 

6:00 PM 
AGENDA 

 

 
COVID-19 AND PUBLIC ACCESS AND PARTICIPATION  
 
The Oroville City Council Chambers are open to the public. To view the meeting or provide comment, 
please see the options below.  All comments emailed will be provided to the Council Members for their 
consideration.  To prevent the spread of COVID-19 and to comply with the time limit regulations for 
individuals to provide comments to the Council, each device or phone number will only be allowed once 
per item.  Multiple individuals may not share the same device to provide public comment.    
 
To View the Meeting:  

1. Watch our live feed https://www.youtube.com/channel/UCAoRW34swYl85UBfYqT7IbQ/  
To Provide Comment to the Board:  

1. Email before the meeting by 2:00 PM your comments to publiccomment@cityoforoville.org  

2. Join the meeting virtually via Zoom – Join Zoom Meeting   

https://zoom.us/j/99508232402?pwd=aThZc1BsUG9sWnhNYnlwZHZZdFFrQT09 
Meeting ID: 995 0823 2402 
Passcode: 17351735 

3. Join the meeting by telephone (audio only): 

Telephone: 1-669-900-9128 

Meeting ID: 995 0823 2402 
Passcode: 17351735 

4. Attend in person following social distancing guidelines 
 

To provide comment via zoom, you will need to use the raise hand function in Zoom.  For those 

accessing the meeting from a computer or smartphone, that raise hand feature can be selected by 

clicking or tapping it.  For members of the public utilizing a telephone (audio only) to access the 

meeting, you can use the raise hand feature when the item for which you desire to provide comment is 

called by pressing *9 on your keypad to raise your hand.  When it is your turn to speak, you will be 

called upon by the last 4 digits of your phone number, if available. 

If you would like to address the Commission at this meeting, you are requested to complete the 
blue speaker request form (located on the wall by the agendas) and hand it to the City Clerk, who 
is seated on the right of the Council Chamber.  The form assists the Clerk with minute taking and 
assists the Mayor or presiding chair in conducting an orderly meeting. Providing personal 
information on the form is voluntary.  For scheduled agenda items, please submit the form prior 
to the conclusion of the staff presentation for that item.  The Commission has established time 
limitations of two (2) minutes per speaker on all items and an overall time limit of thirty minutes for non-
agenda items. If more than 10 speaker cards are submitted for non-agenda items, the time limitation 
would be reduced to one and a half minutes per speaker. (California Government Code §54954.3(b)). 
Pursuant to Government Code Section 54954.2, the Commission is prohibited from taking action except 
for a brief response from the Council or staff to statements or questions relating to a non-agenda item. 

1

https://www.youtube.com/channel/UCAoRW34swYl85UBfYqT7IbQ/
mailto:publiccomment@cityoforoville.org
https://zoom.us/j/99508232402?pwd=aThZc1BsUG9sWnhNYnlwZHZZdFFrQT09


 

July 22, 2021~6:00 PM Oroville Planning Commission Meeting Agenda Page 2 of 4 

CALL TO ORDER / ROLL CALL  

Commissioners: Tammy Flicker, Michael Britton, Glenn Arace, Natalie Sheard, Marissa Hallen, Vice 

Chairperson Wyatt Jenkins, Chairperson Carl Durling, 

OPEN SESSION  

Pledge of Allegiance 

PUBLIC COMMUNICATION – HEARING OF NON-AGENDA ITEMS  

This is the time to address the Commission about any item not listed on the agenda. If you wish to 
address the Commission on an item listed on the agenda, please follow the directions listed above. 

PUBLIC HEARINGS  

The Public Hearing Procedure is as follows: 

- Mayor or Chairperson opens the public hearing. 
- Staff presents and answers questions from Council 
- The hearing is opened for public comment limited to two (2) minutes per speaker. In the 

event of more than ten (10) speakers, time will be limited to one and a half (1.5) 
minutes. Under Government Code 54954.3, the time for each presentation may be 
limited.  

- Public comment session is closed 
- Commission debate and action 

 
1. MINOR USE PERMIT UP21-06 FOR ALCOHOL SALES AT MIS REINAS CARNICERIA AT 

1933 ORO DAM BLVD SUITE E 

The Oroville Planning Commission will review and consider approving Use Permit No. UP21-06 
to allow the applicant to conduct alcohol sales at the new Mis Reinas Carniceria at 1933 Oro Dam 
Blvd Ste E 

RECOMMENDATION 

Conduct a Public Hearing on the proposed project; 

Adopt the Notice of Exemption as the appropriate level of environmental review in accordance 
with the California Environmental Quality Act (CEQA); 

Adopt the recommended Findings for Use Permit No. UP21-06; 

Approve Use Permit UP21-06 and recommended Conditions of Approval; 

Approve a Letter of Public Convenience or Necessity, should it be determined by ABC that 
an overconcentration exists; 

Adopt Resolution No. P2021-09 

 

 

 

2



 

July 22, 2021~6:00 PM Oroville Planning Commission Meeting Agenda Page 3 of 4 

2. SEIDENGLANZ PARCEL AT 1245 ORO DAM BLVD REZONE TO M-2 AND GENERAL PLAN 
AMENDMENT TO INDUSTRIAL   

 The Oroville Planning Commission will review and consider recommending that the City Council 
approve General Plan Amendment GPA 21-01 and Zoning Code Amendment ZC 21-01 for 39-
acre parcel at 1245 Oro Dam Boulevard (APN 035-270-016).   

RECOMMENDATION 

Certify the Notice of Exemption  

Recommend that the City Council approve General Plan Amendment GPA 21-01 

Recommend that the City Council approve Zoning Code Amendment ZC 21-01 

Adopt Resolution No. P2021-08 -- A RESOLUTION OF INTENTION BY THE OROVILLE 
PLANNING COMMISSION RECOMMENDING THE CITY COUNCIL ADOPT GENERAL PLAN 
AMENDMENT 21-01 AND ZONING CODE AMENDMENT ZC 21-01 FOR A 39 ACRE PARCEL 
AT 1245 ORO DAM BOULEVARD EAST (PARCEL # 035-270-016). 

3. TENATIVE PARCEL MAP WAIVER 21-02 (APN 031-110-037) 

The Oroville Planning Commission will review and consider approving a Parcel Map Waiver for a 
lot split to facilitate Phase 3 of the Olive Ranch Affordable Housing development along Table 
Mountain Boulevard at the end of Tuscan Villa Drive. The map will split one lot into two lots. 

RECOMMENDATION 

Approve the recommended Parcel Map Waiver subject to any conditions imposed by the City 
Engineer; 

Adopt Resolution No. P2021-10 

4. ZONING CODE CHANGE TO ALLOW APPELLANTS A SPECIFIC RESPONSE TIME 

The Oroville Planning Commission will review and consider recommending that the City Council 
revise OMC 17.56.100 to allow an appellant up to 20 minutes to present his or her case, and up 
to another 10 minutes to deliver any rebuttal remarks. 

RECOMMENDATION 

Recommend that the City Council Approve the specified changes to OMC 17.56.100 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

3



 

July 22, 2021~6:00 PM Oroville Planning Commission Meeting Agenda Page 4 of 4 

REPORTS / DISCUSSIONS / CORRESPONDENCE 

5. Presentation - Orange and Olive groves and their historical significance in relation to EW Fogg 
and Freda Ehmann 

6. Discussion related to the Process for for Project Denials 

7. Director Reports 

8. Commissioner Reports 

ADJOURN THE MEETING 

The meeting will be adjourned. A regular meeting of the Oroville Planning Commission will be held on 
August 26, 2021 at 6:00 PM. 

 
Accommodating Those Individuals with Special Needs – In compliance with the Americans with 
Disabilities Act, the City of Oroville encourages those with disabilities to participate fully in the public 
meeting process. If you have a special need in order to allow you to attend or participate in our public 
meetings, please contact the City Clerk at (530) 538-2535, well in advance of the regular meeting you 
wish to attend, so that we may make every reasonable effort to accommodate you. Documents distributed 
for public session items, less than 72 hours prior to meeting, are available for public inspection at City 
Hall, 1735 Montgomery Street, Oroville, California. 
 
Recordings - All meetings are recorded and broadcast live on cityoforoville.org and YouTube. 
 
Planning Commission Decisions - Any person who is dissatisfied with the decisions of this Planning 
Commission may appeal to the City Council by filing with the Zoning Administrator within fifteen days 
from the date of the action.  A written notice of appeal specifying the grounds and an appeal fee 
immediately payable to the City of Oroville must be submitted at the time of filing.  The Oroville City 
Council may sustain, modify or overrule this decision. 
 

 

 

 

 

4



 1 

 

City of Oroville 
COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT DEPARTMENT 
1735 Montgomery Street 
Oroville, CA  95965-4897    
(530) 538-2430   FAX (530) 538-2426 
www.cityoforoville.org 

        

PLANNING COMMISSION STAFF REPORT Thursday, July 22, 2021 

RE: Minor Use Permit UP21-06 for Alcohol Sales at the Mis Reinas Carniceria at 1933 Oro 
Dam Blvd Suite E 

SUMMARY:  The Oroville Planning Commission will review and consider approving Use Permit 
No. UP21-06 to allow the applicant to conduct alcohol sales at the new Mis Reinas Carniceria 
at 1933 Oro Dam Blvd Ste E 

 

RECOMMENDATION: Staff recommends the following actions: 

 

1. Conduct a Public Hearing on the proposed project; 

2. Adopt the Notice of Exemption as the appropriate level of environmental review in 
accordance with the California Environmental Quality Act (CEQA); 

3. Adopt the recommended Findings for Use Permit No. UP21-06; 

4. Approve Use Permit UP21-06 and recommended Conditions of Approval; 

5. Approve a Letter of Public Convenience or Necessity, should it be determined by ABC 
that an overconcentration exists; 

6. Adopt Resolution No. P2021-09 

 

APPLICANT: Krista Garritano with Liquor License Agents  

LOCATION:  1933 Oro Dam Blvd Ste E 
(APN 035-050-103)  
 

 

GENERAL PLAN:  MU (Mixed Use) 

ZONING:  MXC (Corridor Mixed Use) 

FLOOD ZONE:  Zone X 

ENVIRONMENTAL DETERMINATION:   Categorically Exempt per Section 15301 of Title 14, 
California Code of Regulations, Existing Facilities.  

REPORT PREPARED BY: 

 

 

___________________________ 
Connor Musler, Assistant Planner 
Community Development Department 

REVIEWED BY: 

 

 

___________________________ 
Dawn Nevers, Assistant Director 
Community Development Department 

5

Item 1.

http://www.cityoforoville.org/


 2 

  

 

DISCUSSION 

Krista Garritano with Liquor License Agents has applied for a Use Permit on behalf of 
the store owner to allow for alcohol sales to be conducted at the recently opened Mis 
Reinas Carniceria at 1933 Oro Dam Blvd Ste. E. According to the Oroville Municipal 
Code (OMC), a market or convenience store would be considered Food and Beverage 
Sales or General Retail, which is a use permitted by right, subject to a zoning clearance, 
in an MXC zone. Alcoholic beverage sales require a Use Permit. 

The applicant is proposing two ABC licenses for the carniceria:  

1. A Type 41 license is to allow for beer and wine for on-site consumption in the on-
site restaurant.  

2. A Type 20 license is to allow for beer and wine sales for off-site consumption to 
allow for alcoholic beverages to be sold alongside other grocery/market offerings.  

The carniceria occupies 5,500 sq ft with a 380 sq ft patio in the Oroville Plaza Shopping 
Center. The space was previously occupied by the former Blueberry Twist restaurant, 
and most recently a Chinese buffet. The property is currently zoned Corridor Mixed 
Use (MXC). 

Alcohol Sales: The proposed liquor store is located in Census Tract 0031.01 which 
includes the South Oroville area south of Oro Dam Blvd, east of Lincoln Blvd, north of 
Oro Bangor Hwy, and west of Lower Wyandotte. Within the immediate vicinity of the 
carniceria, there are 3 retailers that sell alcoholic beverages: 

 
1. 1901 Oro Dam Blvd (Mountain Mikes Pizza) – License Type 41 – On-Sale Beer 

and Wine – Eating Place 

2. 1911 Oro Dam Blvd (Dollar Tree) – License Type 20 – Off-Sale Beer and Wine 

3. 1835 Oro Dam Blvd (Taco Tijuana) – License Type 40 – On-Sale Beer  

If it is determined by the Department of Alcoholic Beverage Control (ABC) that an 

overconcentration of licenses exists, a letter of public convenience or necessity (PCN) 

will be required. Staff is requesting that the commission, should they approve UP 21-06, 

to also preemptively authorize a PCN letter to be sent to ABC. 

Required Findings for Alcohol Sales (OMC 17.16.160) 

Before approving a use permit for alcohol sales, the Planning Commission must consider 
each of the following issues and make appropriate findings (Staff’s comments are in 
italics, draft findings are in the Resolution):  

1. The nature of all land uses within 500 feet of the proposed alcoholic 

beverage sales, and in particular, the location of similar nearby uses and the 

location of residences, parks, schools and houses of worship.  

 The market is located off Oro Dam and Lincoln Blvd’s in close proximity to 

similar retail and food stores. There are not any nearby assembly areas and 

6

Item 1.



 3 

the closest residences are to the rear of the shopping center along Myers St. 

2. Appropriate measures to provide proper maintenance of the building 

exterior, including provisions to keep the premises free of litter and debris. 

 The requirement is added to the project conditions. Applicant took over a 

 location with plenty of garbage and other issues with the property and 

has worked with Code compliance to meet all city requirements for proper 

 maintenance. Applicant will complete exterior painting in accordance with 

 the agreed color scheme. 

3. Lighting of exterior areas, including parking lots, to discourage loitering outside of 
the building. 

 The requirement is added to the project conditions.  

4. Protection of adjacent properties from noise, odors and undue light and glare, as 
well as illegal activity. 

 This requirement is added to the project conditions. Code compliance officers 
will monitor for compliance on an ongoing basis.  

 
5. Provision of onsite security, both inside and outside the building, to satisfy 

any concerns raised by the chief of police. 

 This requirement is added to the project conditions. Code compliance 

officers will monitor for compliance on an ongoing basis. 

6. Hours of operation. 

 Applicant states that the hours of operation are from 8:00 a.m. to 8:00 p.m. 
daily. 

7. Controls on occupancy limits inside of the building and loitering outside of the 
building. 

 This requirement is added to the project conditions. Code compliance officers 
will monitor for compliance on an ongoing basis. 

8. Prevention of adverse effect of the use on the value of adjacent properties. 

As part of a multi-tenant shopping center, this restaurant is likely to enhance 

the patronage and thus the value of adjacent properties; 

9. Whether approval would result in an undue concentration of these uses, and 

whether public convenience or necessity would mitigate the issue of undue 

concentration. 

The Police Department and ABC determine if there is an undue 

concentration in the area. At this time there is no indication of an 

overconcentration.   

 

FISCAL IMPACT  
None.  The project is subject to all customary fees. 

 

7

Item 1.



 4 

PUBLIC NOTICE 
A request for comments was prepared and circulated to the local agencies and 
surrounding property owners within 500 feet of the property. Additionally, the meeting 
date, time, and project description were published in the Oroville Mercury 
Register and posted at City Hall. 

 
ATTACHMENTS 

1. Resolution P2021-09 
2. Notice of Exemption (CEQA) 
3. Application Package 
4. Security Plan 

 

8

Item 1.



 
 

1 

RESOLUTION NO. P2021-09 
 

A RESOLUTION OF THE OROVILLE PLANNING COMMISSION MAKING FINDINGS 
AND CONDITIONALLY APPROVING MINOR USE PERMIT UP21-09 FOR ALCOHOL 
SALES AT MIS REINAS CARNICERIA AT 1933 ORO DAM BLVD SUITE E 
 
 

WHEREAS, the City has received an application for alcoholic beverage sales at 
1933 Oro Dam Blvd; and 

 
WHEREAS, The City of Oroville Municipal Code (OMC) Section 17.16.160 

specifies that a Use Permit is required to sell alcohol; and 
 

WHEREAS, at a duly noticed public hearing, the Planning Commission considered 
the comments and concerns of public agencies, property owners, and members of the 
public who are potentially affected by the approval of the use permit described herein, 
and also considered the City’s staff report regarding the change. 
 
 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE PLANNING COMMISSION as follows: 
 

1. This action has been determined to be exempt from the California Environmental 
Quality Act (CEQA) review pursuant to Title 14, California Code of Regulations, 
Section 15301 “Existing Facilities.” 
 

2. The Planning Commission approves the findings required by Section 17.16.160 of 
the Oroville City Code, as described in this Resolution; 

 

3. The Planning Commission approves the permit Conditions described in this 
Resolution. 
 

4. The Planning Commission approves a letter of public convenience or necessity to 
satisfy ABC requirements. 

 
REQUIRED FINDINGS (OMC 17.16.160) 

 

1. The nature of all land uses within 500 feet of the proposed alcoholic 

beverage sales, and in particular, the location of similar nearby uses and the 

location of residences, parks, schools and houses of worship.  

The market is located off Oro Dam and Lincoln Blvd’s in close proximity to 

similar retail and food stores. There are not any nearby assembly areas and 

the closest residences are to the rear of the shopping center along Myers St. 

2. Appropriate measures to provide proper maintenance of the building 

exterior, including provisions to keep the premises free of litter and debris. 

9

Item 1.



 
 

2 

The requirement is added to the project conditions. Applicant took over a 

location with plenty of garbage and other issues with the property and has 

worked with Code compliance to meet all city requirements for proper 

maintenance.  Applicant will complete exterior painting in accordance with 

the agreed color scheme. 

3. Lighting of exterior areas, including parking lots, to discourage loitering outside of 
the building. 

The requirement is added to the project conditions.  

4. Protection of adjacent properties from noise, odors and undue light and glare, as 
well as illegal activity. 

This requirement is added to the project conditions. Code compliance officers will 
monitor for compliance on an ongoing basis.  

 
5. Provision of onsite security, both inside and outside the building, to satisfy 

any concerns raised by the chief of police. 

This requirement is added to the project conditions. Code compliance 

officers will monitor for compliance on an ongoing basis. 

6. Hours of operation. 

Applicant states that the hours of operation are from 8:00 a.m. to 8:00 p.m. daily. 

7. Controls on occupancy limits inside of the building and loitering outside of the 
building. 

This requirement is added to the project conditions. Code compliance officers will 
monitor for compliance on an ongoing basis. 

8. Prevention of adverse effect of the use on the value of adjacent properties. 

As part of a multi-tenant shopping center, this restaurant is likely to enhance 

the patronage and thus the value of adjacent properties; 

9. Whether approval would result in an undue concentration of these uses, and 

whether public convenience or necessity would mitigate the issue of undue 

concentration. 

The Police Department and ABC determine if there is an undue 

concentration in the area. At this time there is no indication of an 

overconcentration. The Planning Commission    

 

 
CONDITIONS OF APPROVAL 

 

General Conditions 

1. The applicant shall hold harmless the City, its Council members, Planning Commissioners, 

officers, agents, employees, and representatives from liability for any award, damages, costs, 

and/or fees incurred by the City and/or awarded to any plaintiff in an action challenging the 

10

Item 1.



 
 

3 

validity of this permit or any environmental or other documentation related to approval of this 

permit. Applicant further agrees to provide a defense for the City in any such action.  

2. The project shall remain in substantial conformance with the Conditions of Approval, as 

adopted by the Oroville Planning Commission. Any subsequent minor changes in the project 

(as determined by the Zoning Administrator) may only occur subject to appropriate City review 

and approval. Any subsequent substantive changes in the project (as determined by the 

Zoning Administrator) may only occur subject to discretionary review by the Oroville Planning 

Commission.   

3. The applicant shall annually pay for and obtain a City of Oroville business license. 

4. All private facilities, improvements, infrastructure, systems, equipment, common areas, etc. 

shall be operated and maintained by the applicant in such a manner, and with such frequency, 

to ensure the public health, safety and general welfare. 

5. All costs of operation and maintenance of private facilities, improvements, infrastructure, 

systems, equipment, common areas, etc. shall be the responsibility of the applicant. 

6. Pursuant to Section 17.12.010, the proposed use of the site shall conform to the performance 

standards of the Oroville Municipal Code to minimize any potential negative effects that the 

building, structure, lighting or use could have on its surroundings, and to promote compatibility 

with surrounding uses and areas.  

7. Applicable construction plans, calculations, specifications, applications, forms, etc. shall be 

submitted to the Building Division for review prior to the start of any construction activities 

requiring a building permit. All applicable plan review and development impact fees shall be 

paid at time of submittal.  

8. The applicant shall ascertain and comply with the requirements of all of City, County, State, 

Federal, and other local agencies as applicable to the proposed project.   

9. The project shall comply with the City’s noise ordinance as found in the OMC Chapter 9.20.  

10. Pursuant to Section 17.48.010(F) of the City Code, the Planning Commission, upon its own 

motion, may modify or revoke any use permit that has been granted pursuant to the provisions 

of this section upon finding any of the following, based on substantial evidence:  

I. Any of the conditions of the permit have not been satisfied within 1 year after it was 

granted.  

II. Any of the terms or conditions of the permit have been violated.  

III. A law, including any requirement in the Municipal Code Chapter 17, has been 

violated in connection with the permit.  

IV. The permit was obtained by fraud.  

11. Applicant hereby certifies that any and all statements and information provided as part of the 

application are true and correct to the best of their knowledge and belief. Any misinformation 

provided, whether intentional or unintentional, that was considered in the issuance of this 

permit may be grounds for revocation. 

 

Project-specific conditions 

1. The applicant shall provide A.B.C correspondence confirming the status of any permits, and 
whether an overconcentration of this type of store/license exists.  

11

Item 1.



 
 

4 

2. Any roof mounted roof mounted or ground placed utilities (HVAC, generators, etc.) shall 
include an architecturally compatible method of screening. This can include screening by 
landscaping or a decorative fence for ground placed utilities. 

3. Building shall be addressed per City requirements. Building numbers shall comply with City 
Code 17.20.050(A). 

4. A refuse collection enclosure shall be provided in accordance with City Code 17.12.110. The 
refuse area shall be large enough to provide adequate storage for solid waste and 
recyclable materials generated by the use.  

5. The applicant shall submit to the City details of exterior lighting for review and approval. 

6. The exterior paint color shall be returned to the original color scheme currently present in 
the shopping center.  

7. No more than 25% of the window area shall be covered with signs. This includes both 
permanent and temporary signs used to identify the business, products sold, or services 
offered.  

8. The applicant and/or the property owner shall remove the former Chinese Buffet signage as 
required by OMC 17.20.030. Any new signage shall the proper permits and approvals to be 
received in accordance with Chapter 17.20 of the OMC.  

9. The exterior of the building, including windows and doors, shall be maintained, and with 
such frequency, to ensure the public health, safety and general welfare of the city. 

10. Windows and doors shall not be boarded up or blocked unless the appropriate approvals 
are received to ensure the public health, safety and general welfare. This does not include 
the use of plywood or other material used to cover a window for a temporary period of time 
that constitutes a safety hazard and/or invites trespassers and malicious mischief. 

11. Minor changes may be approved administratively by the Community Development Director 
or designee upon receipt of a written request by the applicant or designee.  Changes 
deemed to be major or significant in nature shall require a formal application for 
amendment.  

12. Applicant and/or property owner will take appropriate measures to provide property 
maintenance of the building exterior, including provisions to keep the premise free of litter 
and debris.  

13. Applicant and/or property owner shall ensure adequate lighting of exterior areas, including 
parking lots, to discourage loitering outside of the buildings. 

14. Applicant and/or property owner will ensure protection of adjacent properties from noise, 
odors and undue light and glare, as well as illegal activity.  

15. Applicant and/or property owner will maintain adequate onsite security, both inside and 
outside the building, to satisfy any concerns raised by the chief of police or general public. 
Substantial camera surveillance will suffice.  

 

12

Item 1.



 
 

5 

I HEREBY CERTIFY that the foregoing resolution was duly introduced and passed at a 
regular meeting of the Planning Commission of the City of Oroville held on the 22nd of 
July 2021, by the following vote: 
 
AYES:  

NOES:  

ABSTAIN:  

ABSENT:  

ATTEST:           APPROVE:             
                                                                                                  
 
_______________________________              _______________________________ 
JACKIE GLOVER, ASSISTANT CITY CLERK     CARL DURLING, CHAIRPERSON 

13

Item 1.



1 OF 2 

 

 

City of Oroville 
COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT DEPARTMENT 
1735 Montgomery Street 
Oroville, CA  95965-4897    
(530) 538-2430   FAX (530) 538-2426 
www.cityoforoville.org 

 

NOTICE OF EXEMPTION 
 

TO
: 

Butte County Clerk FROM
: 

City of Oroville 

 155 Nelson Avenue  1735 Montgomery Street 
 Oroville, CA 95965  Oroville, CA 95965 

 

Project Title:  Minor Use Permit UP21-06 for Alcohol Sales at Mis Reinas Carniceria at 1933 Oro Dam 
Blvd Ste E 
 
Project Location – Specific: 1933 Oro Dam Blvd Ste E 
 
Project Location - City: City of Oroville 
 
Project Location – County: Butte 
 

Description of Nature, Purpose, and beneficiaries of project: Krista Garritano is applying for a use 
permit on behalf of the store owner to allow for the sale alcoholic beverages for on-site 
consumption in the restaurant and off-site consumption in the grocery store.  
 
Name of Public Agency Approving Project: City of Oroville   
 
Name of Person or Agency Carrying Out Project: Krista Garritano.  
 
Exempt Status (Check One): 
 

 Ministerial (Sec. 21080(b)(1); 15268) 
 Declared Emergency (Sec. 21080(b)(3); 15269(a)) 
 Emergency Project (Sec. 21080(b)(4); 15269(b)(c)) 
 Categorical Exemption: State type & section number:  

 General Rule Exemption; Title 14, CCR, §15061(b)(3) 

 Existing Facilities, Title 14, CCR, §15301 
 Statutory Exemption: State code number: 

Reasons why project is exempt: This action has been determined to be exempt from the California 
Environmental Quality Act (CEQA) review as follows: 

General Rule Exemption; Title 14, CCR, §15061(b)(3) 
A project is exempt from CEQA if the activity is covered by the general rule that CEQA applies only to 
projects, which have the potential for causing a significant effect on the environment. Where it can be seen 
with certainty that there is no possibility that the activity in question may have a significant effect on the 
environment, the activity is not subject to CEQA. It has been determined that there is no possibility that the 
use will have a significant effect on the environment. Thus, this action is exempt from CEQA.   

14

Item 1.

http://www.cityoforoville.org/


2 OF 2 

 

Existing Facilities, Title 14, CCR, §15301 
Class 1 categorical exemptions consist of the operation, repair, maintenance, permitting, leasing, 
licensing, or minor alteration of existing public or private structures, in particular, no changes to the 
existing structure are proposed.  All changes are interior and to the exterior of the building, all within an 
existing multi-tenant shopping center.  
 
If filed by applicant: 
 

1. Attach certified document of exemption finding. 
2. Has a notice of exemption been filed by the public agency approving the project?  Yes  No 
 

Lead Agency Contact Person: Wes Ervin   Telephone: (530) 538-2408 
 

Signature:          Date:       

 Signed by Lead Agency 
 Signed by Applicant 

 

15

Item 1.



16

Item 1.



PROJECT DESCRIPTION 

Present or Previous Use: 

Proposed Use: 

Detailed Description: 

The Community Development Department operates on a full cost recovery for processing of permits. Staff will charge their time and any expenses 
associated with processing the application against the initial deposit. Fees that have been captured for the reimbursement of City expenses are non-
refundable. 

Technology cost recovery fees are non-refundable 

Restaurant

Restaurant

The applicant is requesting a conditional use permit to allow the sale and dispensing of beer and wine for on-
site and off-site consumption in conjunction with a 2,052 square foot restaurant and 3,448 square foot 
market with hours of operation from 8:00am to 8:00pm daily. The subject premise is located at 1933 Oro 
Dam Boulevard Suite E and measures a total of 5,500 square feet with an additional 380 square foot patio 
area equipped with 8 tables and 32 seats. The premise, which will be known as Mis Reinas Carniceria, will be 
divided into two sections, with the first made up of a restaurant and kitchen area where a full menu will be 
offered to customers looking to have a meal, and the second a carniceria market area for those customers 
looking to pick up some groceries, packaged meals, meats and household items. The applicant is requesting a 
conditional use permit to allow the on-site consumption of beer and wine for those customers coming to the 
location to dine in and the off-site consumption of beer and wine for those customers looking to shop at the 
market and bring their alcohol beverages back home to accompany their self made meals. 

The grant is requested as a convenience to the patrons to allow for an all inclusive experience at the premise. 
The applicant is currently applying for a Type 41 ABC license and Type 20 ABC license concurrently with 
this application. The applicant is a current licensee with the Department of Alcoholic Beverage Control and 
is the owner of another carniceria located in Colusa which is operating with a Type 20 license. As a result, 
the applicant is well versed in the rules and regulations when operating with a license. Each employee will be 
trained in proper procedures for selling alcoholic beverages and observing behaviors within the premise. 
Safety is a priority of the applicant for both the customers and employees. The premise is equipped with 
eight interior surveillance cameras and four exterior cameras to monitor activity. All surveillance videos will 
be maintained for at least 30 days and made available to local enforcement if requested. 

The subject location is located within a shopping center with mixed commercial uses such as The Dollar 
Tree, Big Lots, Salvation Army and a furniture store. The use is consistant with the surrounding uses and 
zoning. There is a private parking lot dedicated to the businesses in the shopping center with 20 spaces 
assigned to the subject location. There are no residents within 100 feet of the premise and the use will not 
cause any disruption to the surrounding businesses or other nearby residents. This is a family owned 
business looking to service the area with its dining and markety availability. The hours are respectful and 
align with the benefit of the community. The applicant is directly involved with the daily activities, training 
and security of the business ensuring a responsible and safe environment for all individuals. The applicant 
understands the importance of maintaining a secure environment and strives to contribute to the integrity of 
the existing neighborhood's character. Any conditions imposed will further safe guard the community.

17

Item 1.



18

Item 1.



19

Item 1.



20

Item 1.



21

Item 1.



22

Item 1.



Mis Reinas Carniceria 
1933 Oro Dam Blvd Suite E 
Training & Security Plan 
 
 
Individuals Responsible for Business 

 Owner - Marcelino Heredia (530)458-7775 
 Operations Manager – Miguel Heredia (916) 628-7517 

 
Age Verification 

 Employees will be required to ask for IDs for all alcohol sale transactions. 
 Additionally, each point of sale register will have an ID age verification device to ensure validity. 

 
Operations 

 The establishment has 11 employees hired with approximately 9 employees scheduled to be on-site at any 
given time. Each employee will be trained in proper procedures for serving and selling alcoholic beverages 
while also observing behaviors within the premise. 

 The applicant is currently applying for a liquor license with the Department of Alcoholic Beverage Control 
and is a licensee with a different location. As a result, the owner is well versed in the Rules and Regulations 
of the ABC. 

 Employees serving or selling alcoholic beverages will be enrolled in an approved department training 
course to learn how to proper check identification, how to deal with difficult situations and basic facts of 
alcohol consumption. 

 On-site training will occur daily through observation and interactions between customers and employees. 
 Employees will also be made aware of the grant’s conditions of approval to ensure compliance is met. 

 
Intoxicated and Disorderly Patrons 

 Through the approved training programs, employees will become familiar with how to identify signs of 
over intoxication. A manager or owner will be on-site at all times to monitor behaviors and service. 
Employees will be trained at regular meetings on how to deal with different scenarios involving disorderly 
patrons.  

 If needed, a manager will be involved immediately to assist with regulating a patron’s intake. Additionally, 
the set up of the establishment is a friendly, family place serving only incidental alcoholic beverages. The 
hours of operation are also respectful to a controlled environment. 

 An Uber driving program will be posted on the premise to assist with helping patrons get home safely if 
they had too much to drink. 

 
Security 

 The premise is equipped with 8 interior surveillance cameras and 4 exterior cameras. The patio dining 
area is enclosed with a barrier and will be monitored by an employee at all times. Video surveillance is 
also positioned to the area as well. The immediate areas of the premise will also be monitored regularly 
to mitigate loitering and any suspicious activity. 

 All surveillance videos will be maintained for at least 30 days. The applicant always tries to establish good 
relationships with the local enforcement and will notify them of any disorderly conduct that cannot be 
rectified internally. 

23

Item 1.



24

Item 1.



25

Item 1.



 1 

 

City of Oroville 
COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT DEPARTMENT 
1735 Montgomery Street 
Oroville, CA  95965-4897    
(530) 538-2436   FAX (530) 538-2426 
www.cityoforoville.org 

 

 

 

 

PLANNING COMMISSION STAFF REPORT Thursday, July 22, 2021 

RE: Seidenglanz Parcel at 1245 Oro Dam Blvd Rezone to M-2 and General Plan 
Amendment to Industrial.  

SUMMARY:  The Oroville Planning Commission will review and consider recommending that 
the City Council approve General Plan Amendment GPA 21-01 and Zoning Code Amendment 
ZC 21-01 for 39-acre parcel at 1245 Oro Dam Boulevard (APN 035-270-016).   

 

RECOMMENDATION:  Staff recommends the following actions: 

1. Certify the Notice of Exemption  

2. Recommend that the City Council approve General Plan Amendment GPA 21-01 

3. Recommend that the City Council approve Zoning Code Amendment ZC 21-01 

4. Adopt Resolution No. P2021-08 -- A RESOLUTION OF INTENTION BY THE OROVILLE 
PLANNING COMMISSION RECOMMENDING THE CITY COUNCIL ADOPT GENERAL 
PLAN AMENDMENT 21-01 AND ZONING CODE AMENDMENT ZC 21-01 FOR A 39 ACRE 
PARCEL AT 1245 ORO DAM BOULEVARD EAST (PARCEL # 035-270-016). 

APPLICANTS: Steven Conn Seidenglanz et al 

LOCATION:  1245 Oro Dam Blvd (APN 035-
270-016) 

 

GENERAL PLAN:  MX (Mixed Use  

ZONING:  MXC (Corridor Mixed Use)  

FLOOD ZONE:  Zone X  

ENVIRONMENTAL DETERMINATION:   Categorically Exempt per Section 15332 and 
15061(b)(3) of Title 14, California Code of Regulations. 

REPORT PREPARED BY: 

 

 

___________________________ 

Wes Ervin, Senior Planner 
Community Development Department 

REVIEWED BY: 

 

 

___________________________ 

Dawn Nevers, Assistant Director 
Community Development Department 

Leonardo DePaola 

Community Development Director 

 

26

Item 2.

http://www.cityoforoville.org/


 2 

DISCUSSION 

The applicant proposes to rezone their 39-acre parcel from MXC to M-2 to 
accommodate an industrial warehouse “e-commerce” prospect they are trying to attract.  

Application materials, maps, status of existing development, and issues for future 
significant development are attached in the DRC Memorandum. 

The M-2 Zoning would allow warehousing uses, while MXC zoning does not.  M-2 
Zoning has a less intense (40%) maximum floor area ratio vs. 1.0 FAR for MXC (100% 
lot coverage in multi-story structures). If the site is again populated with solely heavy 
industrial uses, little would show from SR 162 due to the elevation differences.   

 

ENVIRONMENTAL 

This project is exempt from CEQA under Section 15332 and 15061(b)(3) of Title 14, 
California Code of Regulations. First, the amendment actions themselves have no 
possibility of causing a physical change to the environment and are exempt under the 
Common Sense Exemption. To ensure adequate review for any future development, at 
such time as one or more development projects are proposed, the City will evaluate 
each on its own merits. Staff note, however, that this parcel has been for decades and 
is still developed with both industrial and heavy commercial uses, so most new projects 
would be considered infill under Section 15332 and/or would be ministerial and 
permitted by right. 

 

FISCAL IMPACT  

None.  The project is subject to all customary fees. 

 

PUBLIC NOTICE 

A request for comments was prepared and circulated to the local agencies and surrounding 
property owners within 300 feet of the property. Additionally, the meeting date, time, and 
project description were published in the Oroville Mercury Register and posted at 
City Hall. 

Relevant City departments have reviewed the project for compliance with the policies 
and goals of the General Plan and Zoning Code. The DRC discussed the project on 
July 8. Staff and the DRC agree that the changes will be compatible with City 
requirements and with the surrounding land uses.  

SUMMARY 

Staff recommends the Commission forward a recommendation for City Council approval 
of the General Plan Amendment and Zoning Change.  

 

ATTACHMENTS 

1. DRC memorandum with application, map, and applicant’s statement 

27

Item 2.



 3 

2. Aerial photo showing current and former development 

3. Resolution of Intent P2021-08 recommending to Council the GPA and ZC 
approvals 

4. Notice of Exemption from CEQA 

28

Item 2.



Page 1 

 

City of Oroville 
 PLANNING AND DEVELOPMENT SERVICES 

1735 Montgomery Street 
Oroville, CA  95965-4897    
(530) 538-2402   FAX (530) 538-2426 
www.cityoforoville.org 

 

 

DEVELOPMENT REVIEW COMMITTEE 
MEMORANDUM 

 
 
 

TO: Development Review Committee 
 

FROM: Wes Ervin 
 

DATE: July 8, 2021 
 

RE: Seidenglanz Parcel at 1245 Oro Dam Blvd Rezone to M-2 and General Plan 
Amendment to Industrial 
 

 
Recommendation 
Recommend the DRC forward a recommendation for approval of the GPA and Rezone by the 
Planning Commission, subject to subsequent approval by Council of the same. 
 
Project Description 
The Seidenglanz family owns APN 035-270-016 at 39 acres. The parcel is located along Oro 
Dam Boulevard across from the Ford dealership and at the end of Veatch Street. As noted in 
the attached materials, the parcel has historically been under industrial and heavy commercial 
use for decades, but along with all properties fronting Oro Dam Blvd, was rezoned to Corridor 
Mixed Use in 2009 under the General Plan.  
 
Owners are requesting it be returned to M-2, in part because they have an industrial warehouse 
prospect who needs the re-zone to utilize that site. They also requested the same rezone in 
2017, which did not occur. 
 
Current MXC development standards would allow 39-acres, or 1.6 million square feet in several 
stories, but does not allow warehousing.  
 

MXN 

Maximum height 60’ 

Setbacks 0 

Floor Area ratio Max 1.0 (100%)1 

 
 

 
1 Note that site coverage must still accommodate necessary parking, landscaping and other requirements. 

Leonardo DePaola 
DIRECTOR 

 

29

Item 2.



Page 2 

 

 
 
 
 
M-2 Zoning development standards are as follows:  
 

M-2 

Maximum height 65’ 

Setbacks 0 

Floor Area ratio Max 0.4 (40%)2 

 
 
After rezoning, the maximum lot coverage would be 679,000 square feet, but warehousing and 
distribution are allowed uses. A 679,000 square-foot warehouse would likely employ 200-500 
persons. 
 
Issues 
The site is screened from Oro Dam Blvd (SR 162) by a berm so that vehicles on the Highway 
cannot see very far into the property, so if a warehouse or factory were to be developed there 
few visual impacts would occur. 
 
Access from SR 162 is via two driveways, which would be adequate for access unless a project 
brings heavy truck traffic. In that event, an extension from Veatch, turn lanes, signalization 
and/or a rear access through the Shifflet Brothers site to State Box road may be needed.  
 
Large trucks could not be prohibited from accessing the site via SR 162 because that part of SR 
162 is a designated STAA terminal route. Heavy trucks are allowed by State law to go between 
Highway 70 and a terminal located there.  
 
A rail spur could be installed if the new user so desires.  
 
Processing Status 
Applicant has filed the appropriate applications and paid the appropriate fees. 
 
 
Attachments: 

1. Applicant-generated map of the parcel 
2. Application materials 
3. Project description 

 
2 Note that site coverage must still accommodate necessary parking, landscaping and other requirements. 

30

Item 2.



31

Item 2.



32

Item 2.



33

Item 2.



34

Item 2.



35

Item 2.



36

Item 2.



37

Item 2.

wervin
Polygon



1 of 2 
 

PLANNING RESOLUTION # P2021-08 

A RESOLUTION OF INTENTION BY THE OROVILLE PLANNING COMMISSION 

RECOMMENDING THE CITY COUNCIL ADOPT GENERAL PLAN AMENDMENT   

21-01 AND ZONING CODE AMENDMENT ZC 21-01 FOR A 39 ACRE PARCEL AT 

1245 ORO DAM BOULEVARD EAST (PARCEL # 035-270-016) 

 

WHEREAS, the City of Oroville has received an application from property owner to 
rezone APN #035-270-016 from its current MXC (Corridor Mixed Use) zone to M-2 
(Intensive Industrial); and  

 WHEREAS, the Property is within the Oroville City limits; and  

WHEREAS, approval of the application requires amending the General Plan land 
use designation and zoning designation of the parcels to Industrial (I) and Intensive 
Industrial (M-2) respectively; and   

WHEREAS, the rezoning and land use designation are exempt from CEQA on the bases 
that the action itself has no environmental effect, and it affects an existing developed parcel 
whose further development would be infill; and  

WHEREAS, the Planning Commission considered at noticed public hearing the comments 
and concerns of public agencies and property owners who are potentially affected by the 
changes described herein, and also considered City staffs report regarding the project; 
and   

  

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE OROVILLE PLANNING 

COMMISSION ALL OF THE FOLLOWING:  

1. Recommend that the City Council adopt the Notice of Exemption as the appropriate 
level of environmental review under the California Environmental Quality Act;  

2. Recommend that the City Council adopt General Plan Amendment GPA21-01 and 
Zoning Code Amendment ZC21-01;  

3. That the City Council direct the preparation and adoption of one or more ordinances 
as necessary to amend the City of Oroville Zoning Map to affect the necessary 
zoning changes;  

4. That for any new development the property owner and any subsequent owners must 
obtain all required permits from the City and any agencies responsible for protecting 
natural resources, then implement the conditions of those permits;  

  
  
  

38

Item 2.



2 of 2 
 

 

I HEREBY CERTIFY that the foregoing resolution was duly introduced and passed at a 
regular meeting or the Planning Commission of the City of Oroville held on July 22, 2021, by the 
following vote:  

AYES:   

NOES:   

ABSTAIN:   

ABSENT:   
  

  
ATTEST: APPROVE:  
  
  
_____________________________   _____ _______________________  
JACKIE GLOVER, ASSISTANT   CARL DURLING, CHAIRPERSON  
                             CITY CLERK  

  

 

39

Item 2.



1 OF 2 

 

 

  City of Oroville 
  COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT DEPARTMENT 

 
1735 Montgomery Street 
Oroville, CA  95965-4897    
(530) 538-2430   FAX (530) 538-2426 
www.cityoforoville.org 

 

NOTICE OF EXEMPTION 
 

TO
: 

Butte County Clerk FROM
: 

City of Oroville 

 25 County Center Drive  1735 Montgomery Street 
 Oroville, CA 95965  Oroville, CA 95965 

 

Project Title:  PL2106-003  Zoning Change ZC21-01 and General Plan Amendment GPA21-01 
 
Project Location – Specific: 1245 Oro Dam Blvd East 
 
Project Location - City: City of Oroville 
 
Project Location – County: Butte 
 
Description of Nature, Purpose, and beneficiaries of project: The project applicant, Steven Seidenglanz 
and others, have applied for a rezone to M2 Intensive industrial with corresponding General Plan 
amendment to Industrial. This infill 39-acre site has had multiple industrial and commercial uses for 
decades including as a former limber mill. The City rezoned the property to MXC (corridor mixed use) in 
2009. Applicant is requesting a return to the industrial designation.  
 
Name of Public Agency Approving Project: City of Oroville   
 
Name of Person or Agency Carrying Out Project: Steven Conn Seidenglanz et al  
 
Exempt Status (Check One): 
 

 Ministerial (Sec. 21080(b)(1); 15268) 
 Declared Emergency (Sec. 21080(b)(3); 15269(a)) 
 Emergency Project (Sec. 21080(b)(4); 15269(b)(c)) 
 Categorical Exemption: State type & section number:  

 General Rule Exemption; Title 14, CCR, §15061(b)(3) 

 In-Fill Development Projects, Title 14 CCR, §15332 
 Statutory Exemption: State code number: 

Reasons why project is exempt: This action has been determined to be exempt from the California 
Environmental Quality Act (CEQA) review as follows: 

General Rule Exemption; Title 14, CCR, §15061(b)(3) 
A project is exempt from CEQA if the activity is covered by the general rule that CEQA applies only to 
projects, which have the potential for causing a significant effect on the environment. Where it can be seen 
with certainty that there is no possibility that the activity in question may have a significant effect on the 

LEONARDO 
DEPAOLA 
DIRECTOR 

 

40

Item 2.

http://www.cityoforoville.org/


2 OF 2 

 

environment, the activity is not subject to CEQA. It has been determined that there is no possibility that the 
return to industrial zoning at this location will have a significant effect on the environment. The property 
has housed industrial and commercial uses for over 50 years, has no value as habitat, is surrounded by 
urban development on all sides, and is currently zoned Corridor Mixed Use.  Traffic, noise, air quality, 
water quality and other impacts on this developed site will not be significant. Thus, this action is exempt 
from CEQA.   

 
In-Fill Development Projects; Title 14, CCR, §15332 
Class 32 categorical exemptions consists of projects characterized as in-fill development. Any subsequent 
redevelopment will be considered as infill due to the location, history, and surrounding uses of the site.  
Any subsequent development will also be individually evaluated for its potential to generate significant 
impacts. The site is within City limits, has no value as habitat, will not result in any significant effects, and 
can be adequately served by all required utilities. The proposed zoning change will require less dense 
parcel coverage.  

 

If filed by applicant: 
 

1. Attach certified document of exemption finding. 
2. Has a notice of exemption been filed by the public agency approving the project?  Yes  No 
 

Lead Agency Contact Person: Wes Ervin   Telephone: (530) 538-2408 
 

Signature:          Date:       

 Signed by Lead Agency 
 Signed by Applicant 

 

41

Item 2.



 1 

 

City of Oroville 
COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT DEPARTMENT 
1735 Montgomery Street 
Oroville, CA  95965-4897    
(530) 538-2436   FAX (530) 538-2426 
www.cityoforoville.org 

        
 

A.   DISCUSSION 
 
The Planning Commission will review an application for a Parcel Map waiver to 

PLANNING COMMISSION STAFF REPORT Tuesday, June 22, 2021 

RE:  Tentative Parcel Map Waiver 21-02 (APN 031-110-037) 

SUMMARY:  The Oroville Planning Commission will review and consider approving a Parcel 
Map Waiver for a lot split to facilitate Phase 3 of the Olive Ranch Affordable Housing 
development along Table Mountain Boulevard at the end of Tuscan Villa Drive. The map will 
split one lot into two lots. 

 

RECOMMENDATION:  Staff recommends the following actions: 

1. Approve the recommended Parcel Map Waiver subject to any conditions imposed by the 
City Engineer; 

2. Adopt Resolution No. P2021-10 

 

APPLICANTS: Olive Ranch Apartments II LP  

LOCATION:   Table Mountain Boulevard at 
the end of Tuscan Villa Drive , Oroville, 
California (APN 031-110-037) 
 
 

 

GENERAL PLAN:  MU (Mixed Use) 

ZONING:   MXN (Neighborhood Mixed Use) 

FLOOD ZONE:  Zone X 

ENVIRONMENTAL DETERMINATION:    The project is Categorically Exempt from the 
California Environmental Quality Act (CEQA) review pursuant to Title 14, Division 6, Chapter 3 
of the California Code of Regulations, Article 19 Categorical Exemptions, Section 15315 
“MINOR LAND DIVISIONS”. In addition, as part of another development project that is exempt, 
this map is also exempt. 

REPORT PREPARED BY: 

 

________________________ 
Matt Thompson, City Engineer 
Community Development Department 

REVIEWED BY: 

 

___________________________ 
Dawn Nevers, Assistant Director 
Community Development Department 

Leonardo DePaola 
Community Development Director 

 

42

Item 3.

http://www.cityoforoville.org/


 2 

separate a 31.3 acre parcel into two parcels -- Parcel X at 6.284 acres and Parcel Y 
at 25.030 acres.  
 
The request is to separate an existing parcel into two separate parcels to facilitate 
Olive Ranch Phase 3 affordable housing. The Development Review approval for the 
project – a 3-story 51-unit affordable housing project – occurred on June 24, and the 
project was approved by right with conditions. 
 
This is not a full Tentative Parcel Map, but a waiver. OMC 16.12.040 B sets the 

conditions allowing a waiver:  

B.  When a Parcel Map May Be Waived. 

1.     The planning commission may waive the requirement for a parcel map in any 

case where the proposed subdivision is a division into 4 or fewer parcels, and: 

a.     Where the land being divided consists of a parcel shown on a recorded 

parcel map or final subdivision map or a legally created parcel and the full 

street improvements have been constructed and monumentation is evident; or 

b.     Where each has a gross area of 40 acres or more or each of which is a 

quarter-quarter section or larger; or 

c.     Upon making a finding that the proposed division of land complies with 

the requirements of the city code and Subdivision Map Act as to area, 

improvement and design, floodwater drainage control, appropriately improved 

public roads, sanitary disposal facilities, water supply availability, 

environmental protection and any other requirements that may apply. 

2.     A waiver may be granted only if: 

a.     The subdivider files an application with the zoning administrator stating 

the existence of monuments and improvements prior to consideration of the 

waiver by the planning commission; 

b.     The submitted material conforms to the requirements of the zoning 

administrator as to form and content; 

c.     The application contains a legal description for each parcel; 

d.     The land is monumented on the ground, and a record of survey is 

recorded; 

e.     The planning commission finds that the proposed division of land 

complies with the requirements of the California Environmental Quality Act, the 

zoning code of the city, city ordinances, and improvement standards as set 

forth by resolution of the city, the general plan and applicable specific plans of 

the city. 

The City Engineer has certified that the proposed map satisfies Conditions 1 a, c, and 
2 a-e above, or has conditioned his approval on meeting them prior to recordation.   
 
Planning staff confirm that the proposed division complies with the California 
Environmental Quality Act. The attached Zoning Compliance letter documents that a 
Zoning Change and General Plan amendment will be required to conform the new 

43

Item 3.



 3 

parcel lines existing zones, and to avoid dual zoning of any parcel.  
 
 

 
B. RECOMMENDATION 
 
Staff recommends the Planning Commission review and approve the Parcel Map 
Waiver along with any conditions and exceptions as determined by the City Engineer.  

 
 

C. ENVIRONMENTAL DETERMINATION 
 

This action has been determined to be Categorically Exempt from the California 
Environmental Quality Act (CEQA) review pursuant to Title 14, Division 6, Chapter 3 
of the California Code of Regulations, Article 19 Categorical Exemptions, Section 
15315 “MINOR LAND DIVISIONS”.  Since this is part of another project that was 
permitted by right, no Exemption Certificate is required.  

 
 
D. CONDITIONS OF APPROVAL 
Public improvements will be conditions of approval for applicable building permits.  
Dedications of public utility easements will occur prior to the final approval of the 
waiver by the City Engineer.  Lots will be created and recorded by deed prior to the 
final approval of the waiver by the City Engineer. 
 
 
E. FISCAL IMPACT  

 
The total fees associated with this project are as follows:  
 

Item Price Tech Fee Total Paid 

Waiver of Parcel Map $1,873.87 $114.83 $2,028.70 Yes 

Document fees $     40.00  $     40.00 Yes 

 
 
ATTACHMENTS 

1. Waiver of Parcel Map Application 
2. Proposed Map for Olive Ranch Apartments II LP 
3. Preliminary Title Report 
4. Resolution No. 2021-10 
5. Zoning Compliance letter 

 

 

 

44

Item 3.



45

Item 3.



46

Item 3.



47

Item 3.



48

Item 3.



49

Item 3.



50

Item 3.



51

Item 3.



52

Item 3.



53

Item 3.



54

Item 3.



55

Item 3.



56

Item 3.



57

Item 3.



1  

RESOLUTION NO. P2021-10 

 
A RESOLUTION OF THE OROVILLE CITY PLANNING COMMISSION CONDITIONALLY 
APPROVING A TENTATIVE PARCEL MAP WAIVER TO FACILITATE THE 
DEVELOPMENT OF OLIVE RANCH 3 APPFRDABLE APARTMENTS. 
 

WHEREAS, the City of Oroville staff recommends Tentative Parcel Map Waiver 
No. 21-02; and 

 

WHEREAS, the tentative map to separate a 31.3 acre parcel into two parcels -- 
Parcel X at 6.284 acres and Parcel Y at 25.030 acres is created to facilitate the 
development of 51 3-story Olive Ranch Phase 3 affordable apartments. 

 
WHEREAS, the proposed map meets the criteria of Oroville Municipal Code 

16.12.040 B to allow a waiver. 
 

WHEREAS, at a duly noticed public meeting, the Planning Commission 
considered the comments and concerns of anyone potentially affected by the approval 
of the parcel map waiver described herein, and also considered the City’s staff report 
regarding the change. 

 
WHEREAS, the requested waiver of a tentative parcel map will be in conformance 

with the General Plan and the City’s zoning ordinance after a minor adjustment to conform 
to new parcel lines and to avoid dual zoning of any parcel. 

 
WHEREAS, the requested waiver parcel map seeks no variances or exceptions, 
 
WHEREAS, all required services and access to the proposed parcels are available 

and meet City standards, or will be required prior to recordation, 
 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE PLANNING COMMISSION as 

follows: 
 

1. This action has been determined to be Categorically Exempt from the California 
Environmental Quality Act (CEQA) review pursuant to Title 14, Division 6, 
Chapter 3 of the California Code of Regulations, Article 19 Categorical 
Exemptions, Section 15315 “MINOR LAND DIVISIONS” 

 
2. The Planning Commission approves the waiver of a parcel map to separate a 31.3 

acre parcel into two parcels -- Parcel X at 6.284 acres and Parcel Y at 25.030 

58

Item 3.



2  

acres is created to facilitate the development of 51 3-story Olive Ranch Phase 3 
affordable apartments. 

 

CONDITIONS OF APPROVAL 
 

1. To be determined by the City Engineer 
 

--- End of Conditions --- 
 
I HEREBY CERTIFY that the foregoing resolution was duly introduced and passed at a 

regular meeting of the Planning Commission of the City of Oroville held on the 
22nd of July 2021, by the following vote: 

 

AYES: 

NOES: 

ABSTAIN: 

ABSENT: 

ATTEST: APPROVE: 
 
 
 

  

JACKIE GLOVER, ASSISTANT CITY CLERK CARL DURLING, CHAIRPERSON 

 

59

Item 3.



60

Item 3.



61

Item 3.



62

Item 3.



63

Item 3.



64

Item 3.



65

Item 3.



 1 

 

City of Oroville 
COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT DEPARTMENT 
1735 Montgomery Street 
Oroville, CA  95965-4897    
(530) 538-2436   FAX (530) 538-2426 
www.cityoforoville.org 

        
 

A.   DISCUSSION 
 
At a recent City Council appeal hearing there was some confusion as to the amount 
of time to be granted the appellant during the hearing of their matter.  Appeal 
testimony time limits are not specified in the Oroville Municipal Code.  Though the 
appellant at this appeal was given adequate time to present his case, the Mayor and 
City Administrator have since requested codification of the time limits.  
 
Staff have discussed the matter, and suggest the applicant be given up to 20 minutes 
to present his or her case, and after other testimony, up to another 10 minutes if 

PLANNING COMMISSION STAFF REPORT Thursday, July 22, 2021 

RE:  Zoning Code Change to Allow Appellants a Specific Response Time 

SUMMARY:  The Oroville Planning Commission will review and consider recommending that 
the City Council revise OMC 17.56.100 to allow an appellant up to 20 minutes to present his or 
her case, and up to another 10 minutes to deliver any rebuttal remarks. 

 

RECOMMENDATION:  Staff recommends the following actions: 

1. Recommend that the City Council Approve the specified changes to OMC 17.56.100; 

 

APPLICANTS: Requested by the Mayor to be initiated by the City Council. 

LOCATION:   city-wide 
 
 

 

GENERAL PLAN:  n/a 

ZONING:   n/a 

FLOOD ZONE:  n/a 

ENVIRONMENTAL DETERMINATION:    This zoning change is not a project under CEQA 
since it has no possibility of having a direct or indirect effect on the environment.  

REPORT PREPARED BY: 

 

________________________ 
Wes Ervin, City Planner 
Community Development Department 

REVIEWED BY: 

 

___________________________ 
Dawn Nevers, Assistant Director 
Community Development Department 

Leonardo DePaola 
Community Development Director 

 

66

Item 4.

http://www.cityoforoville.org/


 2 

needed to rebut. 
 
Per Zoning Code OMC 17.56.090 B, an amendment or rezoning may be initiated by a 
Resolution of Intention by either the Planning Commission or the City Council, or by a 
person affected by the amendment. In this case the request is via the Mayor, so the 
Council should initiate the amendment.  

 
B. RECOMMENDATION 
 
Staff recommends the Planning Commission forward their concurrence with the 
recommended changes to the City Council. 
 
 
C. FISCAL IMPACT  

 
none 
 
ATTACHMENTS 

1. Proposed Zoning Ordinance 
2. Suggested Resolution of Intention by the City Council 

 

 

 

67

Item 4.



CITY OF OROVILLE 
ORDINANCE NO. xxxx 

AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF OROVILLE 
AMENDING SECTION 17.56.100 OF THE ZONING CODE OF THE CITY OF 

OROVILLE TO ADD TIME LIMITS FOR APPELLANT TESTIMONY 

The council of the City of Oroville do ordain as follows: 

Section 1.  Oroville Zoning Code Section 17.56.100 is hereby amended to read as 
follows: 

17.56.100 Appeals 

When this chapter provides for an appeal of an action, the appeals process shall 

be as follows: 

A.     Appeals to Planning Commission. 

1.     If the applicant or any other person is dissatisfied with an action of the 
zoning administrator, city engineer, director of parks and trees, fire chief, or 
development review committee, and that action pertains to the requirements of 
this title, he or she may appeal, in writing, to the planning commission within 15 
days after the action. If no appeal is filed, the action shall be final. 

2.     Within 45 days of the filing of an appeal, the planning commission shall 
hold a public hearing to consider the action and the appeal of that action. The 
planning commission shall render its decision within 30 days of the public 
hearing, and it shall provide immediate verbal notice of the decision. If the 

planning commission’s decision is not appealed, the decision shall be final. 

3.  At the appeal hearing, the Commission shall allow appellant up to 20 
minutes to present his or her case, and another 10 minutes to deliver any 
rebuttal remarks. 

B.     Appeals to City Council. 

1.     If the applicant or any other person is dissatisfied with a historic advisory 
commission or planning commission action, he or she may appeal, in writing, 
to the city council within 15 days after the action. If no appeal is filed, the 
historic advisory commission or planning commission’s action shall be final. 

2.     Within 45 days of the filing of an appeal, the city council shall hold a 

public hearing to consider the action taken by the planning commission and the 
appeal of that action. The city council shall render its decision within 30 days of 
the public hearing, and it shall provide immediate verbal notice of this decision. 

The decision shall be final. 

3.  At the appeal hearing, the city council shall allow appellant up to 20 
minutes to present his or her case, and another 10 minutes to deliver any 
rebuttal remarks. 

68

Item 4.



C.    Form of Appeals. All appeals shall be submitted in a form established by the 
zoning administrator, accompanied by a fee established by resolution of the city 
council. (Ord. 1749 § 4; Ord. 1790 § 2) 

  

Section 2.  This ordinance shall become effective thirty days after the second reading, 

or October 1, 2021, whichever comes later. 

Section 3.  The City Clerk shall attest to the adoption of this ordinance. 

PASSED AND ADOPTED by the City Council of the City of Oroville at a meeting on 
August 5, 2021. 

AYES: 

NOES: 

ABSENT: 

ABSTAIN: 

______________________________ 
Mayor, Chuck Reynolds 

APPROVED AS TO FORM: ATTEST: 

______________________________  ___________________________ 
City Attorney, Scott E Huber  City Clerk, Jackie Glover 

 

69

Item 4.



CITY OF OROVILLE RESOLUTION OF INTENTION NO. xxxx 

A RESOLUTION OF INTENTION OF THE OROVILLE CITY COUNCIL 

RECOMMENDING THAT SECTION 17.56.100 OF THE ZONING CODE OF THE CITY 

OF OROVILLE BE AMENDED 

WHEREAS, pursuant to Section 17.56.090 B of the Oroville Municipal Code, 

amendments to the City's zoning regulations may be initiated by the Oroville City 

Council; and  

WHEREAS, the City’s zoning ordinance does not currently reference a time limit for 

appellants to testify, and  

WHEREAS, the City Council is proposing to codify the time limits for appellant 

testimony, and  

WHEREAS, the Oroville Planning Commission held a noticed public hearing regarding a 

proposal to amend certain sections of the City of Oroville’s zoning code regarding 

appeal hearings, and forwarded a recommendation to the City Council to approve the 

change; and  

WHEREAS, no adverse comments were received from the public about the described 

zoning amendments; and  

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the Oroville City Council as follows:  

Section 1.  The public interest and welfare would be served by amending Oroville's 

Zoning regulations as described in this resolution for two reasons:  

A. Amending the regulations as proposed will provide more clarity and direction when 

hearing appeals by either the Planning Commission or the City Council.  

B. The City Council finds that the action is not a project under the California 

Environmental Quality Act.  

Section 2:  The Council shall enact an ordinance affecting the desired code change. 

SECTION 3:  The City Clerk shall attest to the adoption of this ordinance. 

PASSED AND ADOPTED by the City Council of the City of Oroville at a meeting on 
August 3, 2021. 

AYES: 

NOES: 

ABSENT: 

ABSTAIN: 

70

Item 4.



______________________________ 

Mayor, Chuck Reynolds 

APPROVED AS TO FORM: ATTEST: 

______________________________  ___________________________ 

City Attorney, Scott E Huber   Assistant City Clerk, Jackie Glover 

 

71

Item 4.



Photo of EW Fogg – Presentation of Oroville’s Orange and Olive 

Groves and their relation to EW Fogg and Freda Ehmann 

72

Item 5.


	Top
	Item 1.	MINOR USE PERMIT UP21-06 FOR ALCOHOL SALES AT THE MIS REINAS CARNICERIA AT 1933 ORO DAM BLVD SUITE E
	PL2106-011 Mis Reinas PC Staff Report
	PL2106-011 Mis Reinas PC Resolution
	PL2106-011 Notice of Exemption Mis Reinas
	PL2106-011 Application combined Mis Reinas
	PL2106-011 MIS Reinas SecurityPlan combined

	Item 2.	REZONE AND GENERAL PLAN AMENDMENT OF A 39-ACRE PARCEL AT 1245 ORO DAM BLVD EAST TO INTENSIVE INDUSTRIAL
	Draft PC Staff Report Seidenglanz M2
	Seidenglanz DRC Staff Report with Attachments
	Screenshot 2021-06-29 160403General parcel map
	RESOLUTION P2021-08 SEIDENGLANZ M2 REZONE
	Notice of Exemption CEQA Seidenglanz rezone

	Item 3.	TENTATIVE PARCEL MAP WAIVER TPM 21-02 (APN 031-110-037)
	Staff report PC Olive Ranch 3 PM Waiver
	gen-app Olive Ranch 3
	Olive Ranch TPMW_1
	ttl-rpt Olive Ranch 3
	Resolution P2021-10 Olive Ranch 3 PM Waiver
	Olive Ranch Phase 3 zoning compliance letter signed

	Item 4.	ZONING CODE SECTION 17.56.100 CHANGE TO ALLOW APPELLANTS A SPECIFIC RESPONSE TIME
	Staff report PC appeals zoning code change
	CITY OF OROVILLE ORDINANCE NO -- appeals
	CITY council resolution of intention for appeals

	Item 5.	Presentation - Orange and Olive Orchards and their historical relation to EW Fogg and Freda Ehmann.
	Photo of EW Fogg

	Item 6.	Process for Denials
	Bottom

